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          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND FIRE AND CRIMINAL

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Good morning,

          3  everyone, and welcome to today's hearing.  It's a

          4  joint hearing between the Civil Service and Labor

          5  Committee, and the Fire and Criminal Justice

          6  Committee.

          7                 My name is Joe Addabbo.  I chair the

          8  Civil Service and Labor Committee.  I am happy to be

          9  joined by my colleague, the chair of the Fire and

         10  Criminal Justice Committee, Council Member Miguel

         11  Martinez.

         12                 Today we will be discussing Intro.

         13  369-A, which amends the Administrative Code in

         14  relation to the composition of the Fire Department

         15  Pension Medical Board.

         16                 Currently, the Medical Board is made

         17  up of three positions, one appointed by the Board,

         18  one by the Commissioner of Hospitals, as it was

         19  listed, and the last two is the Chief Medical

         20  Examiner of the City's Civil Service Commission.

         21                 Intro. 369-A would replace reference

         22  to the "Commissioner of Hospitals," which is an old

         23  term, with the "Commissioner of Mental Health and

         24  Hygiene," and replace the "Chief Medical Examiner of

         25  the City's Civil Service Commission," again an old
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          2  term, with the "Commissioner of Citywide

          3  Administrative Services."  These changes reflect

          4  changes in the administration structure over the

          5  years.  The Intro. Also adjusts the authority to

          6  appoint a maximum of three alternate positions.

          7                 After the tragic events of September

          8  11th, the FDNY experienced a significant increase in

          9  the number of disability retirement applications.

         10  These applications currently take approximately more

         11  than a year to process, and there is a strong

         12  possibility that the number of these applications

         13  will increase in the coming years causing even a

         14  greater delay.

         15                 Having only one medical board to

         16  review each application contributes to the delay.

         17  Intro. 368-A would allow additional medical boards

         18  to be convened when there is a need to expedite the

         19  retirement process for active fire fighters.  It

         20  would also enable the FDNY to quickly resolve the

         21  employment status of retiring members.

         22                 I am hopeful that the eventual

         23  implementation of Intro. 369-A will help the

         24  current, future and retiring members of the FDNY and

         25  their families by providing a more efficient means
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          2  to address the delay in processing disability

          3  retirement applications.

          4                 Again, I welcome you all here at this

          5  time.  I would like to introduce, again, the chair

          6  of the Fire and Criminal Justice Committee, Council

          7  Member Miguel Martinez.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  Thank you

          9  Chair Addabbo.

         10                 I want to thank you for having this

         11  hearing, and introducing Intro. 369-A on behalf of

         12  the Mayor.  I wish there were no need for the Fire

         13  Department Pension Fund Medical Board, but

         14  unfortunately too frequently, the brave men and

         15  women of our fire department are injured trying to

         16  safeguard us from fires and other emergencies, and

         17  are unable to continue in the fire service.

         18                 I am looking forward to this hearing,

         19  and testimonies on this bill to see how it seeks to

         20  improve the system of reviewing applications for

         21  disability pensions for our fire fighters, and by

         22  the way, I want to thank you and the fire fighters

         23  for their services to our City.

         24                 Again, thank you Chair Addabbo for

         25  introducing this bill, and I look forward to the
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          2  testimonies, and listening as to how the system will

          3  be improved in terms of expediting the pension and

          4  retirement of our fire fighters.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you

          6  Council Member Martinez, and again, I want to thank

          7  the staff of your committee as well as the staff of

          8  the Civil Service and Labor Committee. To my right

          9  here we have Elisa Chae the Legal Counsel to the

         10  Civil Service and Labor Committee, Shauneequa Owusu

         11  the Policy Analyst.  For Fire and Criminal Justice,

         12  Robert Calandra the Counsel for the Committee, and

         13  William Hongach our Policy Analyst.  I again want to

         14  thank the staff.

         15                 My colleagues who are here with us

         16  today, Council Member, far left, is James Vacca, and

         17  council member to his right is Council Member Tony

         18  Avella.  Good morning gentlemen, thank you for being

         19  her with us.  Of course, we always thank the

         20  Sergeant At- Arms for making sure this unruly crowd

         21  remains calm.  But again, thanks to the Sergeant-

         22  At- Arms.

         23                 The one panel who has signed up to

         24  speak today from the Administration, Douglas White,

         25  Deputy Commissioner of the Fire Department.  Mr.
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          2  White, please step forward, and Lei Tian, also from

          3  the New York Fire Department.  Thank you so much for

          4  being here today.

          5                 Again, please let me echo the

          6  sentiments of my colleague Martinez in thanking you

          7  and your members for your dedication and commitment

          8  to the City as far as the FDNY we thank you again

          9  for the work that you do.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Thank

         11  you, good morning Chairman Addabbo and Martinez, and

         12  committee members.

         13                 My name is Douglas White, and I am

         14  the Deputy Commissioner for Administration for the

         15  New York City Fire Department.  At Fire Commissioner

         16  Nicholas Scoppetta's direction, I serve as the Chair

         17  of the Board of Trustees of the Fire Department

         18  Pension Fund.  With me this morning is Lei Tian, the

         19  Director of the FDNY Pension Fund Board of Trustees.I

         20  am pleased to have the opportunity to speak with you

         21  today about Intro. 369, the proposed law seeking to

         22  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

         23  York to permit additional medical boards to be

         24  convened to review disability retirement

         25  applications.
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          2                 As you may be aware, we strongly

          3  support this bill that will allow us to streamline

          4  the processing of pensions to the benefit of our

          5  fire fighters and the Department.

          6                 The FDNY experienced a dramatic

          7  increase in the number of disability retirement

          8  applications after the tragic events of September

          9  11, 2001, an impact of which is still affecting the

         10  Department.  By way of comparison, in 1999 the

         11  number of applications was 404.  In 2003, that

         12  number had increased to 719.  Since that time,

         13  applications remain high, with 427 in 2004, 442 in

         14  2005 and 895 in 2006.  Moreover, at the end of this

         15  September, there have been 722 (sic) applications

         16  processed in 2007, an extraordinary increase due in

         17  large part to applications submitted pursuant to the

         18  World Trade Center disability legislation enacted by

         19  the State Legislature in 2006.

         20                 In many cases, a retirement

         21  application requires more than a year to process, a

         22  delay that burdens both the retiring employee and

         23  the FDNY.

         24                 In addition, because of the World

         25  Trade Center disability law, the Pension Fund
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          2  anticipates that the number of applications

          3  submitted pursuant to that law will continue to

          4  increase in the future.  Having only one medical

          5  board available to review each application for a

          6  disability retirement pension delays the process.

          7                 The proposed legislation would

          8  empower the existing Board of Trustees, the

          9  Commissioner of Department of Health and Mental

         10  Hygiene, and the Commissioner of the Department of

         11  Citywide Administrative Services to each appoint up

         12  to three alternate physicians to make up additional

         13  medical boards.

         14                 The legislation would amend the

         15  Administrative Code section 13- 323 to change an

         16  outdated reference to the Commissioner of

         17   "hospitals" to the successor of DOHMH commissioner.

         18    The proposed legislation also changes the third

         19  member of the medical board from a physician

         20  appointed by the "Chief Medical Examiner to the City

         21  Civil Service Commission," a position that no longer

         22  exists, to a physician appointed by the DCAS

         23  commissioner.

         24                 This bill would allow additional

         25  medical boards to be convened when needed to
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          2  expedite the retirement process for active fire

          3  fighters.  It would enable the FDNY to resolve

          4  quickly the employment status of retiring members,

          5  and fill more quickly the positions left open by

          6  their retirement.  Shorter processing time would

          7  decrease the amount of overtime created by injured

          8  fire fighters who remain on the payroll.

          9                 In addition, the ability to convene

         10  additional medical boards would enable the Fire

         11  Department to process more efficiently the pending

         12  applications of retired members, and to allocate the

         13  supplemental portion of their pension that is

         14  withheld until the disability application has been

         15  processed.

         16                 The bill is modeled on the section

         17  13- 123 and 13 223 of the Administrative Code, which

         18  pertains to the medical boards of the New York City

         19  Employee Retirement System and the New York City

         20  Police Department, respectively.  Pursuant to these

         21  two provisions, NYCERS and NYPD can each convene

         22  medical boards as they are needed.  Given the large

         23  number of pending pension applications, the Fire

         24  Department would benefit from the ability to convene

         25  alternate medical boards in the same manner as
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          2  NYCERS and NYPD.

          3                 In conclusion, clearly, it is

          4  beneficial for both the FDNY and for individual fire

          5  fighters to move the pension process along more

          6  quickly, and to resolve more expeditiously the

          7  pension status of hundreds of retired and about- to-

          8  retire fire fighters.  The FDNY, therefore, strongly

          9  supports this legislation.

         10                 Thank you for allowing me to speak

         11  with you today, and I would be happy to answer any

         12  questions at this time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, Mr.

         14  White.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Ms. Tian, your

         17  testimony as well, or no testimony?

         18                 MS. TIAN:  No.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  She's

         21  here for the questions.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  The real

         24  tough ones.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  We have been
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          2  joined by our colleague, Council Member Mathieu

          3  Eugene.  Council member, good to see you, good

          4  morning.

          5                 Again, thank you very much for your

          6  time here today on Intro. 369- A.

          7                 First and foremost, you had mentioned

          8  numbers in your testimony, obviously an increase

          9  from 1999 to 2003.  There's a drop- off in 2004 and

         10  2005, but then an increase in 2006.

         11                 Any particular reason why a

         12  significant increase from 2005 to 2006?

         13                 MS. TIAN:  That is because we

         14  streamlined our process, and also changed some of

         15  the staffs, and we also upgraded our systems.  We

         16  tried out best to find all kinds of ways to make it

         17  more productive and more efficient for the system to

         18  work.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That would have

         20  caused an increase in applications, you are saying?

         21                 MS. TIAN:  There was an increase in

         22  the applications regardless of all the regular

         23  disability applications we received in 2006.  We had

         24  additional WTC applications.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So there is an
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          2  increase based on, obviously, the ill effects of

          3  September 11th, now coming to fruition.  We're

          4  seeing them currently, and obviously, we believe

          5  that number is going to increase as time goes on,

          6  correct?

          7                 MS. TIAN:  We have tremendous

          8  increase in the applications, yes.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  I think

         10  you can file for WCC up to 25 years.

         11                 MS. TIAN:  Yes, 25 years after

         12  retirement.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Currently I

         15  understand the processing of the applications take

         16  over a year, correct? Roughly?

         17                 MS. TIAN:  Yes, roughly, yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Which is quite

         19  a long time and obviously for the FDNY member and

         20  their families.  Again, once enacted Intro. 369-A,

         21  what do you think would be the processing time?

         22  Obviously, hopefully less than a year, but what

         23  would you think is the appropriate time to process

         24  an application?

         25                 MS. TIAN:  It really depends on the
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          2  ailment or how many claims a person puts on the

          3  application.  So each applications' processing time

          4  varies, but overall I would expect a shortened

          5  process time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Less than a

          7  year.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Let me

          9  just note also that what happens a lot of times,

         10  people will come before the 1- B Board and would

         11  come to the Board of Trustees, questions will be

         12  raised about it, and sometimes it is sent back to

         13  the 1- B Board, and sometimes they would be done two

         14  or three times depending upon the different

         15  ailments.

         16                 We try as much as possible to be as

         17  fair as possible, so we don't want to shortchange

         18  someone who should qualify for disability.  So it's

         19  usually in the room, the way it works is that often

         20  the  --  it may be raised by the City, or it may be

         21  raised by one of the unions.  So, we talk about it

         22  and we try to reach some kind of resolution about

         23  whether it should go back or not.  That sometimes

         24  causes the delay, it's not all inefficiency.  It has

         25  a lot to do with what the 1- B Board can handle for
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          2  instance, and that's another part of it.

          3                 So, I don't think there's any

          4  question we feel that we can move that number down.

          5  It's a year now to process the entire thing, but I

          6  think we can move it down, and we can make it more

          7  efficient.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  I believe you

          9  mentioned it in your testimony, but I'll ask anyway

         10  again.

         11                 Who in terms of the new board members

         12  that need to be appointed, when and who make the

         13  appointments?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  The

         15  legislation provides for the Board of Trustees.  The

         16  Board of Trustees will make them on our side.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  Yes.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Then the

         19  other agencies that are listed, the Department of

         20  Health, I think, and DCAS will make appointments.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  If you do, but

         22  hopefully you do know, in terms of the  --  my

         23  understanding is that they added additional board

         24  members to the police department as well, correct?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  I'll
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          2  think Lei can speak to that.  She probably has some

          3  sense of it.

          4                 How many 1- B panels do they have at

          5  police, do you know?

          6                 MS. TIAN:  I think they have a

          7  maximum of 16 members.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  They were

          9  increased, correct after 9/11?

         10                 MS. TIAN:  That I do not know.  I

         11  don't know about police boards though.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  Okay.  Is

         13  there time in terms of the waiting time for

         14  approval?  Is it as speedy as this process would be,

         15  or does it take longer?  Do they have the same

         16  problems now is my question?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  It's hard

         18  for  --  we don't really know for NYPD.  I don't

         19  think we have that data. Sometimes we know things

         20  because we talk on occasion but I don't know how

         21  quickly they process their cases. I don't know if

         22  it's less than a year or more than a year.  I have

         23  no idea.  I don't think Lei does either, do you?

         24                 MS. TIAN:  No, I don't know about the

         25  police boards.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  When do you

          3  expect the  -- in other words, how long do you think

          4  it will take for the additional appointment process

          5  to begin?  Or to be proposed, the new appointees?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Well

          7  obviously it's something that the Board of Trustees

          8  will have to talk about, and I haven't talked to

          9  them about it either about when that's going to

         10  happen.  But we have meetings once  --  we actually

         11  have one meeting of the Board of Trustees which

         12  deals with disabilities a month.  We have also a

         13  finance meeting, but that's a separate meeting.  So

         14  we meet once a month.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  Does the

         16  budget increase for the Board?  In other words, if

         17  we were going to expedite applications it's not only

         18  just approving it, but also the paperwork and the

         19  support staff, are they going to have additional

         20  support staff?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  That may

         22  happen, yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  But it doesn't

         24  come with the legislation?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  No, it
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          2  doesn't come with the legislation.  We don't have

          3  any  --  in part I think, this was created because

          4  we thought it was more efficient, and I think the

          5  union felt it was more efficient as well.

          6                 I know one member who may be speaking

          7  this morning, but I don't know what the numbers

          8  would be with respect to processing it.  But Lei can

          9  tell you how many people on her staff presently, and

         10  some of that  --  do you want to talk about that?

         11                 MS. TIAN:  I have some regular City

         12  employees, but in case I need more, I had EMS light

         13  duty, and the fire fighter light duty detailed to my

         14  unit.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  Yes.

         16                 MS. TIAN:  So, the number of

         17  employees vary.  I have a very small unit.  It's

         18  like five employees regular, and that is just

         19  serving one Board, and additional two to three light

         20  duty fire fighters, sometimes two to three EMS

         21  people in the unit helping us to prepare the cases,

         22  the medical records, for the medical boards.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  Now let me ask

         24  you a question in terms of the actual  --  the

         25  individuals who are applying for the pension.  You

                                                            20

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND FIRE AND CRIMINAL

          2  correct me if I am wrong, which I probably am.

          3                 But from some friends that are in the

          4  Department, so, you're pension usually falls based

          5  on your last year, or your last three year's

          6  salaries?  How is it calculated?

          7                 MS. TIAN:  That's the union contract

          8  I think.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Yes, and

         10  it's also we're not the people who deal with that

         11  part of it.  There is a unit at the Fire Department

         12  run by a woman named Mary Basso (phonetic), that

         13  deals with those kinds of issues.  We don't really

         14  deal with those issues.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  No, what I was

         16  trying to get at, and if I injured myself in

         17  fighting a fire, and I go for my pension based on

         18  disability--

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: -- is it based

         21  on my last two years salaries or my last year

         22  salary?

         23                 MS. TIAN:  I think the overtime.  I'm

         24  not so sure about it.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Let me
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          2  just say this. I don't want to speak to that.

          3                 When you come before the Board, and

          4  you've been to also to 1- B Board as well, the

          5  medical doctors, what happens is, and we look at

          6  whether or not the injuries that you have is

          7  connected to fighting fires, et cetera, whether it

          8  would be an accident or ordinary, or you would be

          9  denied.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  Yes.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  I don't

         12  even know anything about the money and what it's

         13  based upon.  It's just not something that I deal

         14  with in the context of the functions of the Board of

         15  Trustees.  That's all I'm saying.

         16                 But that question can be answered.  I

         17  mean, I'm not trying to avoid the question, and if

         18  you will write down the question, we will get back

         19  to you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  No, if you

         21  don't have the answer--

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Yes, we

         23  don't have that answer.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Any other
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          2  questions from colleagues?

          3                 You had mentioned the unions, UFA,

          4  UFOA, were they consulted with this Intro. 369-A?

          5  Do we see an approval of Intro. 369-A?  Is there a

          6  general acceptance of the need for expansion of the

          7  Medical Board?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  I think

          9  the union is in agreement, and this was part

         10  initially  --  the agreement to do this was part of

         11  collective bargaining also.

         12                 So, I don't think there is any

         13  objections to it on the part of UFOA or the UFA.  I

         14  know there is one member of the UFOA here, you can

         15  ask him but I don't know if the UFA is here. I don't

         16  see the UFA here so.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  But I

         19  don't think there is a problem.  You can ask Cassidy

         20  (phonetic) about it when you see him.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  We'll take

         22  silence as acceptance.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  I mean,

         24  I'm just looking at a letter from Jim Hanley to

         25  Cassidy, March 2nd, this was a side agreement, but
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          2  it was agreed in collective bargaining because I

          3  seem to remember being there.  Both union's are on

          4  agreement I am told.

          5                 But it says from Hanley to Cassidy,

          6   "this is to confirm the parties in the standing

          7  with regard to expansion of Medical Boards under

          8  Section 13- 323 of the New York City Administrative

          9  Code, the union shall support legislation amending

         10  Section 13- 323 to expand the Medical Board.  Should

         11  the parties be unsuccessful, whatever reason in

         12  implementing such changes, the parties agree to re-

         13  open the contract a bargain of our tentative savings

         14  that are equivalent to the value to which the union

         15  was credited for this provision, et cetera, et

         16  cetera."  So they agreed to it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So there were

         18  conversations with UFA, UFOA, prior to--

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Oh,

         20  absolutely, absolutely.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, to expand

         22  a little bit on Chairman Martinez' process

         23  questions.

         24                 So when a fire department member has

         25  put in his application, while the application is in
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          2  review, no disability benefits at that time?  He has

          3  to wait until the review  --  he has to wait until

          4  the final determination by the Board, correct?

          5                 MS. TIAN:  Correct.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  That is

          7  correct, yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Commissioner

          9  White, would that basically be the complete answer

         10  for the status of the FDNY member at that point, or

         11  are they basically in limbo before the Board makes

         12  the final decision?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  I think

         14  Lei  --  would you just go through the process, sort

         15  of like from beginning to end, and it might be

         16  helpful to the members.

         17                 MS. TIAN:  All of the fire fighters

         18  are examined by the BHS (phonetic), the fire

         19  department doctors, and the fire department doctors

         20  determine whether or not they are disabled, whether

         21  or not they can fight fire.

         22                 So, the Fire Department would drive

         23  this process for active members, and they will put

         24  in a fire commissioners application to the medical

         25  board saying these members are disabled, and apply
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          2  for disability pension for these people.

          3                 Also, retired members, they can  put

          4  in  -- before a member retires, he can put in his

          5  self- application.  We also process those.  Now with

          6  WTC applications, members who are retired after 25

          7  years, they can still apply for disability pension.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Of

          9  course, the basis for that is they may have

         10  developed something from fighting the World Trade

         11  Center that  --  I mean they're retired, but they

         12  got it now, you know, that kind of thing.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Any cost

         14  outweighed by the members while they go through this

         15  process?  Are there medical costs?  Are there any

         16  significant costs of the--

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Sometimes

         18  they visit their own doctors, and that happens on

         19  occasion.  Let's say they say they have some kind of

         20  disease or illness, and it's incident to fighting

         21  fires or World Trade Center or whatnot.  Sometimes

         22  they will go to their own physicians to do that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  But it's the

         24  FDNY doctor that for pension purposes is the

         25  important examination, correct?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Well,

          3  that's true but also the FDNY doctors really

          4  determine fitness.  By statute, the people who

          5  decide disability, the decision is really made by

          6  the 1- B Board, and to the Board of Trustees, and

          7  they make  --  it comes to the Board of Trustees.

          8  Sometimes it's a denial.

          9                 For instance let's say we have 100

         10  cases, 50 of them might be denials.  They say, "we

         11  did not find a disability." This happens frequently.

         12                 Then it will say, "we find that this

         13  person has an ordinary disability."  That is, they

         14  developed  --  they have a disability but it's not

         15  incident to fire fighting.  Maybe something is going

         16  on with their back, that kind of thing.  The union

         17  may argue that, no, that comes from wearing this or

         18  wearing that.  That kind of thing.

         19                 The Board of Trustees has the

         20  responsibility and the power to move a case from

         21  ordinary to accident, if they choose to do so.  That

         22  is something  --  that's how it works, sort of.

         23                 But there are denials, ordinary and

         24  accident, and accident is a three- quarter pension

         25  that we talk about.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And just to

          3  expand on the explanation of the process, on a

          4  denial, is there an appeal process?  If the FDNY

          5  member doesn't agree with the denial, there is an

          6  appeal process, or is that a final determination?

          7                 MS. TIAN:  If the 1- B Board

          8  recommends denial of an application, the member can

          9  appeal at the Board of Trustees. Usually most of the

         10  denial cases are appealed back to the 1- B Medical

         11  Board.

         12                 So, the Medical Board will review new

         13  medical evidence or send them out for additional

         14  tests.  All those are like expenses that you were

         15  asking about on the fire department.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So if there's

         17  any discrepancy between the FDNY members own

         18  doctor's report and--

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  We would

         20  do it all the time.  We send them back.  We are very

         21  open to doing that, and sometimes by the way, that

         22  causes some delay because they are going back and

         23  forth sometimes.  A lot times they say there's a

         24  mis- reading of the situation, or they didn't

         25  consider this.  A lot of times with respect to fire
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          2  fighters there's a form that's in their records

          3  called a CD- 72, and so when you get injured on a

          4  fire you go into the BHS doctors and they said he

          5  ruptured his knee bone or something like that, and

          6  they write it in.

          7                 So ultimately, when they go before

          8  the 1- B Board, they look at the record and see that

          9  in 1972 this is what happened to him and it's

         10  related to that.  Now his problem with his knee is

         11  related to that particular accident, that kind of

         12  thing.  That's what happens.  It's sort of a

         13  reasonable approach to it really.  It's not

         14  unreasonable at all, and we are extremely open to

         15  sending it back to the 1- B Board saying, "you

         16  didn't consider this, or you might have missed this,

         17  or you didn't explain that's why you denied him"  It

         18  happens all the time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Generally in

         20  conclusion, there's no significant cost to the City

         21  for Intro. 369- A, correct?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  You know,

         23  I don't think so.  I mean, let me just say this.

         24  It's possible that at some point Lei may say, "I

         25  can't process all of these applications with the
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          2  present unit.  I need another three people."

          3  Something like that.  I mean, that's certainly

          4  possible, but we're not there yet.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  In the end just

          6  my

          7  opinion, I think the benefits of Intro. 369-A far

          8  outweighs any possible--

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  I think

         10  what it is, it's an option that we have it.  We can

         11  do this to keep the process moving, and to make it

         12  move more quickly.  That's what this gives us the

         13  ability to do.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Council Member

         15  Martinez.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  I just want to

         17  follow up so I can understand it.

         18                 So basically the increase is based on

         19  need.  In other words, this is not a board that is

         20  going to be permanently meeting but let's say if the

         21  amount of applications increase, you will call in

         22  additional members?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  That's

         24  right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  Thanks.

                                                            30

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND FIRE AND CRIMINAL

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I want to thank

          3  this panel for their time and testimony, Ms. Tian

          4  and Commissioner White.

          5                 I really would appreciate that after

          6  the implementation of Intro. 369-A, and they go

          7  through the Pension Board, that possibly we have you

          8  back here for an overview and see how it is going,

          9  and basically seeing how the implementation of

         10  whatever 369-A is going to impose, and having an

         11  oversight hearing somewhere down the line in the

         12  future.

         13                 So, we appreciate your cooperation in

         14  the future as well.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Thank you

         16  very much, we would be happy to come back, and I

         17  appreciate the courtesy of the panel.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Again, I thank

         19  you for your time as well.

         20                 We've been joined by Council Member

         21  Alan Gerson, and again thank you very much for your

         22  time and testimony.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 MS. TIAN:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I understand

          3  that Council Member Eric Gioia is on his way.  Since

          4  there are no other individuals giving testimony,

          5  nobody else has signed up at this point, I want to

          6  thank all of you for being here today.  We will keep

          7  the record open if we could for Council Member Gioia

          8  to check in.

          9                 Thank you everyone.  Have a great

         10  day.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 10:44 a.m.)
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